

AMMO CHIEFS ASSOCIATION

We are the AMMO Chiefs Association (ACA) established and operated by retired and active duty AMMO Chiefs dedicated to preserving our AMMO heritage. A fraternal, not-for-profit organization, our members consist of combat veterans and their spouses. The purpose of the ACA is to encourage and facilitate camaraderie and social activities among AMMO Chiefs and members of the AMMO Community by supporting and sustaining worthwhile AMMO related initiatives and programs.

We are AMMO, and damn proud of it!

Visit our web page at: AMMOCHIEFS.COM

<u>THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:</u>

President	Bart Ivy	mailto:president@AMMOchiefs.com	
Vice President 🦊 🦼	Mark Gossett	mailto:mgossett@prodigy.net	
Secretary	Matt Lingelbach	mailto:secretary@AMMOchiefs.com	
Treasurer	Mike Robertson	mailto:acatreasurer@AMMOchiefs.com	
Chief-at-Arm <mark>s</mark>	Keith Bollinger	mailto:keith.a.bollinger.civ@mail.mil	
Director-at-La <mark>rge</mark>	"Big John" Greer	mailto:bigjohn461@bellsouth.net	
Director-at-Large	Jackie Jones	mailto:jackanddaleen@gmail.com	
Director-at-La <mark>rge</mark>	Vicki Lemke	mailto:victoria.lemke@us.af.mil	
Director-at-La <mark>rge</mark>	Wesley White	mailto:AMMOchief30@gmail.com	
ACA holds el	ections every 4 years. This BC	OD began their terms on 1 January 2020.	
Shell & Flame Editor	Joe Dominguez	mailto:jfdom2504@hotmail.com	

Contents

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:1	
FROM THE PRESIDENT:3	
FROM THE VICE PRESIDENT:3	
FROM THE SECRETARY:3	
FROM THE TREASURER:3	
MID-ATLANTIC CHAPTER:5	
EMERALD COAST CHAPTER:	
WASATCH FRONT CHAPTER:	
MID-WEST CHAPTER:7	
LONE STAR CHAPTER:	
DESERT MOUNTAINS CHAPTER:	
363RD TRAINING SQUADRON9	
AMMO Schoolhouse - ACA Outstanding Graduates	9
AFCOMAC - 9TH MUNITIONS SQUADRON16	
ACA OUTSTANDING PERFORMER AWARDS	. 16
CHIEF GAUVIN MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP APPLICATION18	
ACA MEMORIAL PAVER PROGRAM19	
AMMO HERITAGE MONUMENT21	
HOW TO DONATE – REMEMBER: NO DONATION IS TOO SMALL!	
AMMO NEWS22	
CENTRAL AMMO BOWL THANK YOU LETTER	. 22
IN MEMORIAM23	

FROM THE PRESIDENT:

By Bart Ivy

Fellow Ammo Chiefs, I hope this finds you well and in good health. Ammo is still kicking ass and taking names, the AMMO Monument has reached over 100% of the goal and is in the works. The ACA is in good financial health, and we are continuing to support Ammo Troops around the world and our Chapters are doing amazing things supporting their local Ammo Troops.

Our 2022 Reunion scheduled for Tucson AZ from 13-16 Oct is still on and we hope you can make it out this year. First drink is on me.

Please keep in touch I would love to hear from you.

Keep Your Powder Dry

<u>FROM THE VICE PRESIDENT:</u>

By Mark Gossett

I want to once again put in a pitch for the upcoming reunion. Tom and the members of the Desert Mountains Chapter have put in a lot of time and effort pulling this together. It's been four years since we've had the opportunity to gather as a community. Looking at the schedule of events there is plenty to keep everyone busy. Looking forward to seeing many of you there. Take care, stay safe and keep your powder dry.

FROM THE SECRETARY:

By Matt Lingelbach

Where has the summer gone? Even though COVID is still around our family is trying to make the best of the summer months. We have celebrated our daughter's graduation from high school, been to visit our first grandbaby and seen some amazing sights. It is hard to believe that Labor Day is just a little over a month away which signals the official end of summer and the beginning of football season! LOL!

We are also 75 days from the Reunion in AZ! I hope to see folks make it there to catch up with the crew. The Desert Mountains team has a busy weekend planned with a little bit of everything to satisfy anybody's interests.

We just hosted the 10th Annual AMMO Picnic here at Hill AFB this past weekend for all the Active Duty and retired AMMO Troops. It was a great time and had an awesome showing! Hope to hear more from the other Chapters about the amazing events that they are starting to put together.

I will begin to relieve Joe Dominguez from putting out the Shell and Flame over the next couple newsletters. He has served the community honorably for many years and its time that he can sit back and enjoy the fruits of all his labor. Want to thank him for putting this together through thick and thin, health, COVID and beyond! Finally, please be gentle with me as I am shy and don't take criticism well! Jk!

FROM THE TREASURER:

By Mike Robertson

I've been in the Treasurer position for 7 months now and things are moving along well. As of July 31, 22 we have surpassed our \$40,000 fundraising goal for the AMMO Heritage Monument by \$1,080 (102.7%). Monument donations have been steady and appreciated. I must call out 2 specific



donations that were significant and helped meet our milestone. First, was a \$2,500 donation from the USAF Logistics Officer's Association (LOA) and second a \$2,000 the donation from AMMO Veteran's Association (AVA) from donations they collected at their annual Bash at the Beach. We want to give them a big Thank You – Bless their Hearts! In May, we made our first down payment of \$11,000 to Rock of Ages who is building the monument. We hope to see the monument delivered and installed sometime around May 2023. We are still accepting donations for the monument as we anticipate cost increases for delivery and installation in 2023. If you have not heard, there will be five drawings for "mini-monuments" - more

information about that is below.

We have ordered 16 AMMO Legacy Pavers so far this year. The Airman Heritage Foundation has experienced supply-chain issues with their paver supplier for the ink used to inscribe the pavers, so installation of pavers is delayed. We will notify everyone when they are back on track and the pavers are installed.

	Mer	nbershij	b Total	s by CV	napter	and Ty	pe	02-Aug-22
Chapter	Total	Chief Life	Chief Annual	Associate Life	Associate Annual	Honorary Spouse	Honorary	Shell and Flame
Lone Star	7	5	1			1		
MidWest	10	9						1
Desert Mountains	12	11				1		
Mid-Atlantic	21	15		5		1		
Wasatch Front	22	19		2			1	
Emerald Coast	53	32		15		5		1
At Large	149	110	7	16	1	10	2	3
Totals	274	201	8	38	1	18	3	5

Remember, you can still pay 2022 annual or lifetime dues at any time. Once you've paid \$250 in annual dues you automatically become a Lifetime Member and do not have to pay dues again – ever! If you want to become a lifetime member sooner rather than later, you just need to pay any remaining lifetime dues balance. Contact myself or the Secretary, Matt Lingelbach and we'll let you know how much dues are remaining to achieve Lifetime status. You can pay dues via the AmmoChiefs.com website directly via PayPal and "Send Money" to "AmmoChiefs" or you can mail a check to:

ACA Treasurer c/o Mike Robertson 1043 S 2500 W Syracuse UT 84075

IYAAYAS!

MID-ATLANTIC CHAPTER:

By Phil Kennedy



ACAMC	BOD
President	Phil Kennedy
Vice President	John Nye
Secretary Treasurer	Vacant
Director at Large	Rich Pennington



Summer has finely arrived in Virginia... rainy, hot, humid, and miserable as usual. Wouldn't have it any other way! COVID has subsided to a point, not deterring anyone from taking some well-deserved time off from work to play at the beaches, visit other vacation spots, or just relax to recharge their battery with family and friends.

The Chapter's 2nd quarter meeting in June was an in-person (destination) and dial-in event held at Extra Billy's BBQ Restaurant, in Richmond. Members present were Phil Kennedy, President; CMSgt. John Nye, Vice-President; Rich Pennington, Director-at-Large, and Eddie Fuquay. Great!!!!! Took a roll call to determine if the Chapter had enough members present, that calledin, and proxies to form a quorum to conduct Chapter business. Some of the issues the Chapter is focused on this quarter:

- As a fund-raising initiative,
 - Explore the idea of raffling a Harley motorcycle & through donations;
 - o Register the Chapter in the Wreath Across America Foundation database;
- Present the Chapter's Oral History Project initiative to the ACA BOD in October;
- Forward completed Chapter 2021 audit to ACA Treasurer;

Final notes;

- Phil Kennedy, Rich Pennington, and Eddie Fuquay plan to attend the 2022 ACA Reunion;
- CMSgt Steve Parcell's retirement ceremony. Picture below is of fellow AMMO Chiefs who took part in Chief Parcell's retirement great turnout!
- The 3rd Quarter Chapter meeting is scheduled for 10 September, 1:00pm, at 1st MUNS, Langley AFB, VA



EMERALD COAST CHAPTER:

By John Greer

ACAECC	BOD
President	John Greer
Vice President	Dennis Tangney
Secretary	Vacant
Treasurer	Johnny Long
Chief at Arms	Willie Mothersell



The Chapter was saddened to lose one of its longtime members as Glenn Rielly passed away after a long bout with cancer. He was an active member who could be counted on to assist in any endeavor. He was the team chief who built the original Ammo Bar at the Helen Back and later maintained it at the FUBAR Pizza Bar and Grill. This has been the talk of many an Ammo Call held each year thanks to Glenn's efforts to continually add new munitions to the area and astounding the young troops with his war stories. He will be missed.

The 10-12 Jun Ammo Bowl was a great success as Moody Ammo dominated, with both the A and B teams taking their respective division tournaments. Fourteen teams represented, A great time was had by all visitors and participants. John and Doris were able to raise \$1200.00 and donated it towards the Ammo Monument. Mark and Donna Dunn did their usual excellent job on the grill keeping the troops fed with burgers and dogs.

Had our meeting on 22 July at Poppy C's BBQ, an Ammo Veteran husband and wife team Rene and Caitlin. The BOD only mtg was to discuss upcoming activities and budget concerns and final golf tourney report. We had 91 players show up for the 21 Jun tournament which benefitted the homeless Veterans in the local area. Due to the generous donations of our members and sponsors we were able to raise over \$1900.00 for the Mental Health Association (MHA)

We have our next meeting scheduled for 17 September with spouses also at Poppy c's BBQ Grill. Our Treasurer Johnny Long and President John Greer plan to present the check to the MHA Director when she gets back in town.

The request for selectees from Hurlburt, Eglin and Tyndall Bomb Dumps for Munitions person of the Year will go out the end of August and will be presented at the Annually Awards Dinner on 4 Nov.

We will also have our Ammo Day burger burn at the Munitions Flights on 2 December and that should close the activities out for the year for the Emerald Coast Chapter.

Wasatch Front Chapter:

By Chris Hazard

ACAWFC	BOD
President	Chris Hazard
Secretary/Treasurer	Keith Jackson



Dave Vanert, after 4+ years of service as our Secretary/Treasurer has passed the torch to Keith "Jack" Jackson.

Hill AMMO had its 10th Annual AMMO barbeque on 30 July. Was great to see the AMMO community back together after the last two years of chaos!



MID-WEST CHAPTER:

By Don Meyers

ACAMWC	BOD
President	Mark Gossett
Vice President	Don Myers
Secretary Treasurer	Vacant

After a long hiatus, Billie and Lynn Campbell, Mark and Kim Gossett and Don and Sheri Myers took time to gather for dinner in mid-July. The chapter also donated \$100 to sponsor a hole at the Annual Chiefs Group Golf outing in early August.

The ACA Midwest Chapter recognized the HQ AFMC Outstanding Munitions Professionals for the Second Quarter of 2022. We wish them all congratulations on a job well done. The winners were:

- SrA Dillion N. Cudney at the 649 MUNS, Hill AFB, UT
- SSgt John A. Mitchell V at AFTC/SMWP, Hill AFB, UT
- MSgt Joe R. Cedillo III at the 96th MXS, Eglin AFB, FL
- Mr. Joshu L. Modglin at the 96th MXS, Eglin AFB, FL

LONE STAR CHAPTER:

By Joe Dominguez

ACALSC	BOD
President	Sabrina Still
Vice President	Fred Lee
Secretary/Treasurer	Joseph Dominguez



On Saturday, 14 May 2022, The Lone Star Chapter held a general membership meeting at the Liberty Bar in San Antonio. During this meeting a quorum was establish and a general election was held for President and Secretary/Treasurer. Congratulations to Sabrina Still who was elected as our new President and to Joe Dominguez who was re-elected as our Secretary/Treasurer. The entire chapter extends it thanks to Steve West for his years of service as our past President.

The LSC remains a sponsor organization for Wreaths Across America and you can sponsor a wreath to be placed on a veteran's gravesite at a location of your choosing by visiting our website HERE. Your sponsorship is greatly appreciated.

DESERT MOUNTAINS CHAPTER:

By Tom Cox

ACADMC	BOD
President	Tom Cox
Vice President	Bill Pennington
Secretary/Treasurer	Ricky Quattlebaum



The 20th Anniversary reunion plan is underway, we are charging forward. Although we are 90 days out from the date, we have only 18 members and 9 spouses signed up. We hope to see more of you sign up.

No matter the number who sign up, we're pressing on with the event. Fortunately, we haven't finalized reservations, due to all requiring payment up front, and cost is determined by head count. The only major cost is transportation, and we're currently looking at alternatives to the really big bus. We'll get this all nailed down after September 15th.

For those who come, we'll be providing everyone a gift bag and in it will be our 20 Anniversary challenge coin.



As a reminder, although October is a beautiful time of year temps can get a tad warm. For those who haven't been in the desert for quite a while, take water with you everywhere. We'll have cases of bottled water on site. Lots of people like to walk around Reed Park, just across the street from the hotel, a couple of miles distance, but lots of scenery to take. Shorts and a comfortable shirt or blouse is the normal dress. I doubt if you'll need a jacket or sweater, but you ought to bring one just in case.

We are looking forward to seeing all of you, don't miss the opportunity to come to the 20th Anniversary Reunion.

363RD TRAINING SQUADRON SHEPPARD AMMO

Points of Contact:

363 TRS/TTMB, MSgt Taylor M. Johnson, <u>mailto:taylor.johnson.10@us.af.mil</u> 363 TRS/TTMB, Lisa M. Hurt, GS-11, <u>mailto:lisa.hurt.1@us.af.mil</u>



AMMO Schoolhouse - ACA Outstanding Graduates

Editor's Note: No students in Classes 22022, 22024 to 22026, and 22028 met minimum Top Graduate criteria.

AB Levi A. McDonald

Class: 22014

Hometown: Allen, TX **Gaining Base/Unit**: Seymour Johnson AFB, NC



AB Gage Thompson

Class: 22015

Hometown: Philadelphia, PA Gaining Base/Unit: Shaw AFB, SC



AB Dylan Everman

Class: 22016

Hometown: Murrieta, CA Gaining Base/Unit: Kunsan AB, ROK



A1C Johnathon Rhoads

Class: 22017

Hometown: Sacramento, CA Gaining Base/Unit: Minot AFB, ND



A1C Nathaniel Scott

Class: 22018

Hometown: Poteau, OK Gaining Base/Unit: Minot AFB, ND



AB Ankhang Ma Class: 22019

Hometown: Philadelphia, PA Gaining Base/Unit: Whiteman AFB, MO



A1C Josiah Davis

Class: 22020

Hometown: Priest River, ID Gaining Base/Unit: Hill AFB, UT



A1C Hannah Hartley

Class: 22021

Hometown: Fort Wayne, IN Gaining Base/Unit: 122nd FW



A1C Kevin G. Greenwell

Class: 22023

Hometown: Albuquerque, NM Gaining Base/Unit: Creech AFB, NV



AB Chase Turley
Class: 22027
Hometown: Salt Lake City, UT Gaining Base/Unit: Holloman AFB, NM



Amn Deven J. Labom

Class: 22029

Hometown: Las Vegas, NV Gaining Base/Unit: Osan AB, ROK



A1C Travis Smith

Class: 22030 Hometown: Lubbock, TX Gaining Base/Unit: Eielson AFB, AK



A1C Cole T. Reynolds Class: 22031

Hometown: St. Louis, MO Gaining Base/Unit: Whiteman AFB, MO



<u>AFCOMAC - 9TH MUNITIONS SQUADRON</u>

Points of Contact: CMSgt Lance Andrews, SMSgt Jeff Seals and MSgt David Benner





ACA Outstanding Performer Awards

Class 22-05 - SSgt Sierra Gehringer Unit/Base: 18 MUNS, Kadena AB, Japan





Class 22-06 - SSgt Brandon Stewart Unit/Base: 4 MUNS, Seymour Johnson AFB, NC



Class 22-07 – SSgt Catharyn M. Clyde Unit/Base: 420 MUNS, RAF Welford, England



CHIEF GAUVIN MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP APPLICATION



The Chief Gauvin Memorial Scholarship Fund Applications are available at www.rgauvin.org. Please distribute to anyone you know of in the fAMMOly that can take advantage of this opportunity. AMMO helping AMMO....huuaahhh!!!!

~~~~~

The Chief Master Sergeant (CMSgt) Richard A. Gauvin AMMO Troop Memorial Fund was founded in June 1998 by Class 9806 as a continuing class legacy to pay tribute to Chief Gauvin for his selfless contributions to his country and the AMMO community. Class 9806 contributed the initial funds in the amount of \$400.00, obtained through personal contributions by class members. All class members agreed the fund should be established to award scholarships to children of munitions personnel who held AFSC 461XX, 465XX or 2WOX1 on active, reserve, or ANG duty in the service of the USAF.

The Air Force Combat Ammunition Center (AFCOMAC) Senior Staff will administer the scholarship fund. All future AFCOMAC classes will have the opportunity to raise funds and contribute to expanding the scholarship fund.

The USAF Major Command Functional Managers who act as the AFCOMAC Board of Advisors (BOA) will be the Scholarship Selection Committee to review, approve, and decide on the amount awarded to each applicant. All scholarship applicants will submit their applications prior to 1 June of each year.

The AMMO Chiefs Association (ACA) contributes \$500 annually directly to the AFCOMAC BOA selected recipient of the Chief Gauvin Memorial Scholarship.

# ACA MEMORIAL PAVER PROGRAM

By Mike Roylance

The AMMO Chiefs Association Inc. has recently expanded their Legacy Memorial Paver Program to include all AMMO ranks. We call it - **AMMO ROAD** 

The price of the pavers is \$70. Our cost is \$65 per paver which is the reduced rate we negotiated and receive from the Airman Heritage Foundation (AHF). This profit of \$5 per paver is used to help fund AMMO Heritage Monument project. Any orders via our PayPal account should include the fees of \$2, so \$72 total. We receive no further reduction for multiple pavers. However, our pavers are grouped together, the first AFSC to do so. Visit the latest details on the AHF Paver program at www.AmmoChiefs.com.

All pavers are placed as ordered; there can be no reserved spaces or special grouping. Orders would remain "First in - First out". Order your own, one for a mentor you respected while on duty, a friend or a spouse. If you place an order and we find it is a duplicate, we will let you know.

We would reserve the right to ensure any wording is in accordance with the AHF guidelines and our requirement that the paver have some wording related to AMMO. Remember there are 3 lines of text limited to 14 characters per line including spaces. Acceptable entries might read AMMO (rank), IYAAYAS, KYPD, AMMO Wife, AMMO SPOUSE, etc. Something easily identifiable as AMMO related.



The following AMMO Chiefs have been identified as deceased with no paver.

| Memorial Pavers Needed |               |              |  |
|------------------------|---------------|--------------|--|
| <b>Last Name</b>       | First Name    | Rank / Grade |  |
| Fisher                 | James "Jesse" | CMSgt        |  |
| Lane                   | John C        | CMSgt        |  |
| Obleman                | Michael R.    | CMSgt        |  |

If anyone, group, or chapter would like to purchase one please remember these can be considered a donation to the ACA and therefore are tax deductible – even your own. Information on purchasing a paver and background can be found here: <a href="https://AMMOchiefs.com/aca-memorial-paver-program/">https://AMMOchiefs.com/aca-memorial-paver-program/</a>.

The focal point for all orders is the ACA Treasurer: acatreasurer@AMMOchiefs.com.

# **Background**

At the 2016 San Antonio Reunion ACA members toured The Airman Heritage Museum and later a recommendation was made to purchase a Lifetime Membership @ \$300 and receive a free single Legacy Paver.

Rather than a single one time donation via Lifetime membership, another proposal was made to create a new ACA tradition to perpetuate the memory of deceased ACA AMMO Chiefs.

The pavers are placed in a pathway that encircles the parade grounds at Lackland AFB in San Antonio Texas.

The purchase of Legacy Pavers supports the ACA Constitution and honors AMMO's heritage in a place highly visible to future Airmen and the public; it also supports the Airman Heritage Foundation long-term. Win/Win.





Initially the BOD agreed to purchase a Legacy Paver for all deceased ACA AMMO Chiefs then added all deceased ACA Members. Funding for all other previous AMMO Chiefs was provided by donations, most by ACA members. Several Chiefs have ordered their own.

The Program was adopted by the ACA BOD in mid-2017 and

started shortly after. The first batch was ordered in

November 2017 with the first 44 being installed in the ground in May of 2019.

They are installed in front of the B-17 aircraft known as "Heaven's Above" which is right next to the Medal of Honor Monument. You can see the area on a google map below. Top left corner.

As you can see from the pictures the ADA compliant path will be completed with blank pavers and as pavers are purchased the blanks will be removed and replaced with Legacy Pavers. Generally, this is how the entire program works. It is our understanding

that there is room for upwards of 1,000 pavers in our area.

Orders yours today with a credit card via PayPal. The price is \$72: <a href="https://AMMOchiefs.com/donations-to-the-aca/">https://AMMOchiefs.com/donations-to-the-aca/</a>. Paying by check or money order, send an email to <a href="mailto:acatreasurer@AMMOchiefs.com">acatreasurer@AMMOchiefs.com</a>. The response will tell you where to send your \$70 payment.





# **AMMO Heritage Monument**

Source: Mike Roylance

Our Goal is to preserve the AMMO Heritage with a Monument that depicts or symbolizes the efforts of the USAF Munitions Systems Career Field personnel and their achievements.



Design and location are finalized. The design is shown on the left and the location will be at the USAF Armament Museum at Eglin AFB, FL. We have already started the process

To learn more about the AMMO Heritage Monument, please visit our website at <a href="https://AMMOchiefs.com/AMMO-memorial/">https://AMMOchiefs.com/AMMO-memorial/</a>

# How to Donate - REMEMBER: NO DONATION IS TOO SMALL!

You can donate using PayPal or by mail. Another avenue to check is with your company – many are willing to make matching donations to legitimate nonprofits like the ACA.

- On line, you can donate directly by visiting <a href="www.paypal.com/ammochiefs">www.paypal.com/ammochiefs</a>, log into your PayPal account, click on Send and then enter AMMOChiefs in the Name block. Be sure to designate your donation is for the AMMO Heritage Monument. Please note that if you donate by credit card, PayPal does subtract a small fee from the donation.
- Visit <a href="https://AMMOchiefs.com/donations-to-the-aca/">https://AMMOchiefs.com/donations-to-the-aca/</a> to obtain the mailing address and additional information. You can also email the ACA Treasurer at acatreasurer@AMMOchiefs.com.

#### Contest to Win A Miniature AMMO Monument Replica



We have five miniature replicas, each one is serial numbered, that will be given away in five separate drawings to some lucky AMMO supporter.

All that is required is for you to send in your donation as noted above. For every \$50 you donate, one entry will be made in your name. For example, if you donate \$250, you will have five entries in that drawing.

Eligible donations received during the timeframes shown below will automatically be entered into the drawing for that period.

| Eligible Donations Received |                       | Drawing Date      | Winner       |
|-----------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|--------------|
| Starting 15 July 2022       | Ending 14 August 2022 | 21 August 2022    | Mark Gossett |
| Starting 15 August          | Ending 14 September   | 21 September 2022 | Van Ray      |
| 2022                        | 2022                  |                   |              |
| Starting 15 September       | Ending 14 October     | 21 October 2022   | Pat Adams    |
| 2022                        | 2022                  |                   |              |
| Starting 15 October         | Ending 14 November    | 21 November 2022  | TBD          |
| 2022                        | 2022                  |                   |              |
| Starting 15 November        | Ending 14 December    | 21 December 2022  | TBD          |
| 2022                        | 2022                  |                   |              |

# **AMMO NEWS**

#### **Central AMMO Bowl Thank You Letter**

AMMO Bowl Committee 8118 State Highway 79 South Wichita Falls, TX 76310

TO: AMMO Chiefs Association

FROM: Central AMMO Bowl Committee

SUBJECT: Thank You for the Donation

- 1. The members of the Central AMMO Bowl Committee would like to thank you for your donation of \$250.00 at this year's Central AMMO Bowl. Central AMMO BOWL is held each year on Labor Day weekend in Wichita Falls TX. AMMO Bowl is the one event each year that all AMMO Troops world-wide mark on their calendars. Continuing this annual tradition not only boosts morale and esprit de corps, but it also continues to build on the partnership between Sheppard AFB and the local community of Wichita Falls.
- 2. To continue the 39 years of tradition that has been built throughout the AMMO community, create esprit de corps, build morale, keep the strong camaraderie between new friends, and re-acquaint with old ones. The intent of AMMO Bowl is to allow AMMO troops the opportunity to socialize, rekindle friendships, play some softball, and boost morale as we continue on our paths in the United States Air Force.
- 3. Disclaimer: This organization does not represent Sheppard Air Force Base or the United States Air Force in any way. This is a private organization. It is not part of the Department of Defense or any of its components and it has no governmental status. Any such donations made will go to benefit this organization and not Sheppard AFB, the United States Air Force or the United States Government.
- 4. If you have any questions, please contact James Conner at 940-882-9344. Thank you for your support!

James Conner

AMMO Bowl Committee

# **IN MEMORIAM**

They shall not grow old, as we that are left grow old: Age shall not weary them, nor the years condemn. At the going down of the sun and in the morning, we will remember them.

Laurence Binyon, "For the Fallen" September 1914



| Leon B. "Pete" Aaron   |
|------------------------|
| Frank Arnold           |
| Michael Bachman        |
| Larry G. Ballard***    |
| Dave Barber***         |
| Wilbur R. Barrentine * |
| Gail Bechtal (Bectle)  |
| Walter L. Bell */**    |
|                        |

Frank D. Bolin
Anthony P Borzomowski
Jim "Jimmie" Branson
Rennice H Jim Bray
Randolph H. Brown
Shawn P Byrne
Don Carbonneau
Lott S. Carter \*\*\*
Martin Church

Edward H. Ted Costick \*\*\*

Preston Craven
Charles Crawford
Program C. "Pad" Cr

Bernard C. "Red" Crayne Michael D "Mike" Curran \*\*\*

James Curtin

Thomas E Jr Danihel Robert J Delan<mark>e</mark>y

Phillip Delisi

William R "Bill" Dressler

Larry Eaton

Charles L. "Chuck" Eaves

Kathy Elle James N Elledge

Thomas F Everett

William "Bill" Fick \*\*\*

James "Jesse" Fisher

Joseph N Freas

Francis J "Frank" Gamache

Richard Gauvin Karl J Gershutz Don Hamilton \*\*\* Gerald "Red" Hess

Howard Holt
Robert N. Ivey
Jay A. Jameson
Stefiel D. Johnson
William M "Bill" Jolly

Perry D. Jones \*
Paul H. Klein
John C Lane
Karen Long
Paul Long \*\*\*

William Lovelady Leo Marquez \*\*\*

John A. Matthews Sr.

**Donald Mayo** 

Arthur L "Lon" McAlister Alvin "Al" Mercer \*\*\*

Clifton E Mills

William R "Bill" Mosier

Kevin Mullaney Darrell Mulvany

Charles Chuck Norton\*\*\*

<mark>Michael R Obleman</mark>

Edward Patry
James Phinney
William "Bill" Poe
Louis V. Prelip
Harold P. Prevett \*

Stonewall Ramsey
Erwin G. "Erv" Redman

Robert "Bob" Reinhart Leander Richards

Leroy Rott

Neil G. Schaible

Frederick J. Schoettler

**Gary Scott** 

Robert G Sechler

Ben Stubbe

Addison"George" Wadsworth

Joseph S "Joe" Wata\*\*\* Donald L. Wesolowski Richard Whatton

Kenneth R. Whitley
Bruce Wilson

Lyle M. Winnicki George Yarbrough Michael J. Yurkanin Thomas Zima \*\*\*

The Light of the shell and flame will serve as a reminder of the level of excellence and esprit-de-corps set by those who came before us; the light of the shell and flame will also help us look back to remember those AMMO Troops, who are no longer with us and the service they performed for their country and to the AMMO community. In doing so, we will gain strength from the fact that such men and women lived......FOR WE ARE AMMO!

Those listed with a single asterisk \* held the distinction of being a Charter Chief in the USAF. Those listed with a double asterisk \*\* were Bataan Death March Survivors. Those listed with a triple asterisk \*\*\* are Shell & Flame Awardees